
Deborah Schaffer  Library Commission 
Recording Secretary                                                                            October 12, 2015 

1 

       October 12, 2015 
 
MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
TORRANCE LIBRARY COMMISSION 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
 The Torrance Library Commission convened in a regular session at 7:04 p.m. on 
Monday, October 12, 2015 at Katy Geissert Civic Center Library.   
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 

Present: Commissioners Gerber, Haussmann,  
Perkins, Sargent, and Chairperson Ross. 

 
Absent:  Commissioner Ravine. 
 
Also Present:  City Librarian Theyer and 
   Reference Librarian Ross. 

 
 MOTION:  Commissioner Sargent moved to grant Commissioner Ravine an 
excused absence for the October 12, 2015 Library Commission meeting.  Commissioner 
Gerber seconded the motion; a roll call vote reflected unanimous approval. 
 
3. FLAG SALUTE 
 

Chairperson Ross led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
4. AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING 
 
 MOTION:  Commissioner Perkins, seconded by Commissioner Sargent, moved 
to accept and file the report of the City Clerk on the posting of the agenda; a roll call vote 
reflected unanimous approval (absent Commissioner Ravine). 
 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
5A. MINUTES OF SEPTEMBER 14, 2015 
 
 MOTION:  Commissioner Sargent moved to approve the Library Commission 
meeting minutes of September 14, 2015 as presented.  Commissioner Gerber seconded 
the motion; a roll call vote reflected unanimous approval (absent Commissioner Ravine).  
  
6. NEW BUSINESS   
 
6A. FRIENDS OF THE TORRANCE LIBRARY 
  
 City Librarian Theyer reported that Friends are busy getting ready for the Fall 
Hardback Book Sale at Katy Geissert on October 16-17. 
 
 
 



Deborah Schaffer  Library Commission 
Recording Secretary                                                                            October 12, 2015 

2 

6B. TORRANCE YOUTH COUNCIL 
 
Youth Council members Saaketh Tirumala, Julie Kaplan, and Diane Kim 

introduced themselves and shared information about today’s Talent Show at the Bartlett 
Center and Winter Boutique at Wilson Park on December 6.  Chairperson Ross stated 
that he would like to brainstorm ideas for another video presentation promoting the 
Library at their next Youth Council meeting on October 21. 
 
6C. TEACHER LOAN POLICY 
 
 City Librarian Theyer reported that the Library offers a special card to Torrance 
public or private teachers, enabling them to use items from the library in their classrooms 
without taking space on their personal library card. She presented the Teacher Loan 
Policy that has minor revisions to bring it up to date with changes in loan periods, fines, 
and fees.  She asked that the Commission review the policy and provide any input. 
 
 In response to Commissioner Gerber’s inquiry, she stated that not many teachers 
take advantage of this service, but that the Library expects more usage with Common 
Core. 
  
6D. PROCTORING EXAMS PRESENTATION 
 
 Reference Librarian Ross provided a PowerPoint presentation on Proctoring 
Services offered at the Library.  He defined “proctor” as a supervisor, especially of an 
examination or dormitory in a school.  He stated that a proctor is needed to ensure the 
integrity of the testing process and noted the increased demand for proctors due to the 
growth of distance education.  He explained how a student submits an Exam Proctoring 
Request that is then routed to Reference Services Supervisor Aguado for scheduling. 
 
 He stated in the past four quarters Reference staff proctored 129 exams for 51 
different individuals.  He noted that students are pursuing Associate’s, Bachelor’s, or 
Master’s degrees as well as certificates or continuing education credits.  He stated that 
the current fee is $50 per exam session of up to three hours and that Torrance residents 
account for one-third of students utilizing the service.  He noted that the $6,350 received 
in the past four quarters goes into the City’s General Fund. 
 
 Responding to Commissioner Perkins’ inquiry, Reference Librarian Ross stated 
that usually the student is responsible for paying the fee. 
 
 City Librarian Theyer noted the high demand for proctoring services, adding that 
many institutions require a Proctor Certification and a librarian to serve as proctor.  
 
7. OLD BUSINESS     
 
7A. COMMISSION STAFF APPRECIATION DEBRIEF 
 
 Commissioners and staff discussed this year’s staff recognition that included a 
personal visit from two or three Commissioners to each work unit where cookie trays and 
gift cards were presented.  City Librarian Theyer stated that feedback has been positive, 
with staff members expressing appreciation for the personal visit, gift, and opportunity to 
meet with Commissioners.   



Deborah Schaffer  Library Commission 
Recording Secretary                                                                            October 12, 2015 

3 

 Chairperson Ross expressed concern that recognizing all staff members takes 
away from the Commission’s original intent to recognize part-time employees.  It was 
pointed out that the City now equally recognizes part-time employees and that many of 
them were unable to attend the Part-Time Recognition breakfasts that the Commission 
used to host.   
 
 Further discussion was deferred to next year when the Commission plans the 
next staff appreciation. 
 
8. MONTHLY DIVISION REPORT  
  

City Librarian Theyer noted that her Monthly Division Report was included in 
agenda materials.  She reported that the Commission Annual Report is on the Consent 
Calendar for the October 13 City Council meeting.  She announced that City Council has 
formally passed the creation of a new Social Services Commission that would meet on 
the fourth Thursday of the month starting in January 2016.  She asked Commissioners 
to consider if they want to appoint a Library Commission liaison to the Social Services 
Commission. 
 
9. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 
9A. Commissioner Haussmann stated that she attended the Del Amo Mall opening. 
 
9B. Commissioner Gerber stated that she attended the Del Amo Mall opening and 
Chamber of Commerce’s State of the City. 
 
9C. Commissioner Sargent stated that she attended the Chamber of Commerce’s 
State of the City, the September 29 Commission Certification class, Del Amo Mall 
opening, and worked at the Health Fair at Farmers’ Market. She distributed 
announcements for a Miracle of Living lecture on Cancer on October 21. 
 
9D. Commissioner Perkins stated that she enjoyed attending the Torrance Art 
Museum opening reception and Del Amo Mall opening. 
 
9E. Chairperson Ross stated that he attended the dedication of the Transit Center 
and a military submarine reunion in Detroit.  He shared information about his visit to 
England where he had the opportunity to visit Chester Library and British Library.  
 
10. ITEMS FOR NEXT LIBRARY COMMISSION MEETING 
 
 Items for the November 9, 2015 Library Commission meeting agenda were listed 
and include:  Friends, Youth Council, Monthly Division Report, Social Services 
Commission, staff presentation, and CLA Conference.  
 
11. ADJOURNMENT 
  

MOTION:  At 8:00 p.m., Commissioner Sargent moved to adjourn the meeting to 
November 9, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. at Katy Geissert Civic Center Library. Commissioner 
Gerber seconded the motion; a roll call vote reflected unanimous approval.  

### 
 

 
Approved as submitted 
November 9, 2015 
s/ Rebecca Poirier, City Clerk   


